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Answers to Questions Regarding RFP 09-12 
Master Data Management 

 
Q.  Within the services described I did not see any reference for Integration Services; how are 
you going to populate the system?  Or is this RFP for the MDM solution only and these services 
will be bid separately? 
A.  This RFP is a product procurement only.  There is no population of data other than to test 
the completion of delivery of the product. 
 
Q.  On page 33 #4 Data Warehouse you refer to InformaticaBox1 – is this the name of the 
server where Informatica is installed? 
A.  This appears to be a typo.  It should read “Business Objects 11 (BOXI).” 
 
Q.  Is the JIS Data Repository hosted on a single DB2 zOS database or multiple DB2 zOS 
databases? 
A.  The JIS Data Repository is hosted on a single DB2 z/OS database. 
 
Q.  The MCIS system uses which database system hosted on which operating system? 
A.  MCIS is a system that is owned by one of the local courts.  It is outside our control so I don’t 
know its specifics. 
 
Q.  Does the JRS system store data in a database repository?  If so, which database system 
hosted on which operating system? 
A.  The JRS system collects receipting data on a local desktop computer.  That data is then 
uploaded to the JIS Data Repository in DB2 (the JRS application manages the connection and 
data transfer which triggers a batch job on z/OS that receives the data and stores it in DB2). 
 
Q.  Other than DB2 hosted on zOS and SQL Server 2000/2005 hosted on Windows mentioned in 
the RFP, what other database systems and operating systems are part of the JIS Technology 
Landscape? 
A0.  There are no other database systems or operating systems. 
 
Q.   Will the configuration effort for Deliverable #2 – MDM Implementation involve building 
load processes from all of the systems listed in Schedule E? 
A.  No. Product procurement only. 
 
Q.  Will the configuration effort for Deliverable #2 – MDM Implementation involve the initial 
load of data from all of the systems listed in Schedule E into the MDM repository? 
A.  No. Product procurement only. 
 
Q.  Will the configuration effort for Deliverable #2 – MDM Implementation involve designing 
and building WA AOC specific workflow processes? 
A.  No. Product procurement only. 
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Q.  Will the integration effort for Deliverable #2 – MDM Implementation involve integrating the 
existing PowerCenter ETL loads to the Data Warehouse as part of the MDM repository intial 
load and bulk updates of the MDM solution? 
A.  No. Product procurement only. 
 
Q.  Will the integration effort for Deliverable #2 – MDM Implementation involve integrating the 
existing Identity Systems search and matching system into the MDM solution? 
A.  No. Product procurement only. 
 
Q.  What are the types of JIS users that will access the JIS MDM solution? Also, is there a JIS 
portal that would be used as a primary means of access for the JIS users? 
A.  The vast majority of activity will come from court personnel who are driving the transactions 
that manipulate data in the JIS data repository.  The analysis to determine the portion of JIS 
data that would reside in the MDM solution has not been completed.  Based on analysis to 
date, it is estimated that less than 25% of the current data will qualify as master data.  Other 
users of the JIS data repository are read-only.  They include court personnel, governmental 
entities (local state, and federal), private business, and the general public.  There is no portal as 
such today. 
 
Q.  What are the 200 concurrent database threads referring to? For instance, is it the access to 
JIS back-end applications, a specific JIS database, etc.? Or is it the concurrent access to a 
particular MDM entity? 
A. The "200 concurrent database threads" refers to the current thread count on the JIS data 
repository which resides in a single DB2 database on z/OS. 
 
Q.  How will the external partners share the data? Please provide examples of "external 
partners,” if possible, and example data sharing scenarios. 
A.  There are some courts that have developed their own systems.  Currently those courts are 
entering data in both systems and are using one-off techniques to discover changes to the JIS 
data repository so that they can update their local system.  We anticipate the need for those 
local systems to provide data directly to the JIS data repository and to consume updated data 
from the JIS data repository.  For example, Spokane has a local system that does not update the 
JIS data repository, and uses a scheduled download process to receive updates. 
 
Q.  What are the anticipated typical MDM transactions - please provide examples. What does 
the transaction entail (e.g. new case introduction, workflow, validations, etc.)? 
A.  The 7.5M transactions are primarily online data manipulation.  They generally involve either 
a search for a small set of data for display, or updates of a few rows in several referentially 
related tables.  The batch jobs that access the JIS data repository typically update the data as a 
series of transactions with characteristics that are similar to the online transactions.  Currently 
the workflow and data validation are managed by the applications. 
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Q.  JIS applications - details on the Data Store (e.g. what is the JIS Data Repository) as well as 
the specific interfaces for the MDM applications (e.g. is AOC assuming access to the data store 
level, or other mechanisms such as messaging, web services etc. are available) 
A.  The JIS data repository is a single DB2 database on z/OS.  There is also a SQL Server data 
warehouse whose contents are extracted from the DB2 database.  Virtually all manipulation of 
the JIS data repository is performed by JIS applications (see appendix E in the RFP).  We do not 
want to access the MDM data store directly.  We want to know capabilities of the proposed 
solution. 
 
Q.  Can you please us provide us, if possible, a detailed list of the 290 data entities, including 
details on which are master data vs. transaction data, as well as details on the general number 
of attributes for each entity. Additionally, please provide any information available on where 
these data entities are currently residing in the JIS Applications 
A.  The list of data entities will be sent separately from this document.  The analysis to 
determine the portion of JIS data that would reside in the MDM solution has not been 
completed.  Based on analysis to date, it is estimated that less than 25% of the current data will 
qualify as master data.  All of the 290 data entities currently reside in the DB2 database.  All 
entities are available to all JIS applications. 
 
Q.  Are 7.5M transactions across all Entities or Specific Entities? Please provide more 
information on the distribution of these transactions across the master data entities. 
A.  Generally speaking, all the transactions would affect some set of master data elements. 
 
Q.  Is there a breakdown of batch load vs. individual transactions for these 7.5 M weekly 
transactions? How many are straight load vs. transactions requiring validations and approvals? 
A.  The 7.5M transactions are primarily online data manipulation.  The batch jobs that access 
the JIS data repository typically update the data as a series of transactions with characteristics 
that are similar to the online transactions. 
 
Q.  Please provide more details and an example for the multi-relationship requirement 
A.  An example of a multi-relationship would be the association of charges against a particular 
defendant on a particular case.  Associating the charge with the case is insufficient if it doesn't 
apply to all defendants, and associating the charge to the person is insufficient without knowing 
the case. 
 
Q.  Please provide more details and an example for the relationships spanning systems 
requirement 
A.  For example, the Washington State Bar Association (WSBA) maintains current information 
about attorneys that are allowed to practice law in Washington State.  The AOC associates 
attorneys with parties on a case.  This is a relationship that spans systems (AOC and WSBA). 
 
Q.  Please provide more details and an example for the data constraints Validation requirement 
in Data Quality section 



Page 4 of 10 
Answers to Vendor Questions Re: RFP 09-12 

 

A.  For example, there are acceptable values for a person's eye color and upper limits on dollar 
amounts for civil cases in Courts of Limited Jurisdiction (CLJ).  Assuming that these constraints 
are captured within an MDM component, do other products and applications need to create 
their own version of these constraints in order to use them (e.g. to assess data quality)?  Can an 
external system (e.g. Spokane's local system) access the constraints in the proposed solution to 
validate data values before sending that data to the AOC? 
 
Q.  Please provide more details on the Systems Integration requirements listed in the column C 
of this row. 
A.  For example: 
Will local ETL processes need to create rules for constraints already defined in the MDM 
system? 
Can external systems (e.g. USPS) be accessed by the proposed solution to determine whether a 
data constraint has been met? 
Will the AOC need to retain copies of data that exists elsewhere (e.g. the WSBA)? 
When there are updates to multiple systems that need to be performed in a particular order, 
what is the mechanism for managing these updates? 
 
Q.  Please provide more details and examples for the enforcement of predefined thresholds 
requirement 
A.  Hypothetically: 
If a transaction is not allowed to run longer than a specified period of time, is that detected and 
what actions can be taken? 
If there is a limit on the number of tables that can be updated within a transaction, can this be 
detected and what actions can be taken? 
 
Q.  Can you explain what ‘290 data entities’ means?   Are these various entity types, such as 
person, location, address, case etc… or, distinct tables within the various data sources? 
A.  These represent distinct tables.  Our primary data domains include Person, Court Case, 
Citation, and Court (location). 

 
Q.  What do the stated 7.5M transactions per week include?  Is this search, updates, and 
inserts?  If so, what is the expected breakdown of these? 
A.  I don’t have an exact breakdown.  For purposes of this RFP assume 50% search, 25% update, 
and 25% insert. 

 
Q.  Does the AOC have an existing Enterprise Service Bus (ESB), such as Microsoft BizTalk or IBM 
Websphere? 
A.  The AOC has BizTalk. 

 
Q.  By the term “concurrent database threads”, is this referring to concurrent database 
connections? (Just to validate the language/terminology differences-) 
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A.  The term “thread” is intended to be understood as IBM uses it in their manuals for DB2 on 
z/OS (see the online manual for DB2 installation for the setting of thread count thresholds). 
 
Q.  Deliverable #2 – MDM Implementation - How many source systems are participating in this 
project? 
A.  This is a product procurement only.  Data will be loaded into the MDM system only to test 
the completeness of the product delivery. 

 
Q.  Deliverable #2 – MDM Implementation - Do you expect Professional Services to be quoted 
for the data loading, data integration & matching tasks within this RFP? 
A.  This is a product procurement only.  Data will be loaded into the MDM system only to test 
the completeness of the product delivery. 
 
Q.  Deliverable #3 – Product Training and Knowledge Transfer – While the AOC has many users 
of the integrated justice system, we assume product training and knowledge transfer will take 
place with data custodians and system administrators.  Is this assumption correct?  If it is, 
approximately how many individuals would be classified as such and require training / 
knowledge transfer? 
A.  This is a product procurement only.  The Knowledge Transfer component is to ensure that 
AOC is capable of installing, configuring, and using the product. 
 
Q.  Should the cost proposal be submitted in a separate email, in the same email as a separate 
document in the same email as the technical response, or as a separate section of the technical 
response? 
A.  Submit the cost proposal in the same email as a separate document. 

 
Q.  Is the requirement for a Performance Bond or suitable security negotiable?   
A.  We need a performance bond for this particular project.  

 
Q.  Performance Bond – What options would be considered ‘suitable security’.  
A.  We are requesting a performance bond. 
 
Q.  Appendix A.  Do you have specific requirements for the content you would like included in 
the Submittal Letter & References?   
A.  Please review the RFP. 

 
Q.  Appendix B.  Do you have a Pricing Matrix form that you would like Vendors to use?   
A.  Please see website for Appendices B and C  
http://www.courts.wa.gov/procure/?fa=procure.opportunities&procureid=139 

 
Q.  Can you please provide the applicable terms and conditions for Vendor review? 
A.  Please see the website for Appendix C. 

 

http://www.courts.wa.gov/procure/?fa=procure.opportunities&procureid=139�
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Q.  Schedule says ending of contract on 30 June 2009.  Does it indicate the solution has to be in 
production by 30th June?  How critical is this deadline for you? 
A.  This is a product procurement.  This contract will not include deploying master data within 
the MDM solution in a production environment.  The product will be installed and tested only 
to ensure that the agreed product has been successfully delivered.  This is an absolute deadline.  
We can pay only for what is delivered before end-of-day June 30, 2009. 
 
Q.  Please detail the different databases that you use in terms of the vendor and size. 
A.  Transactional database: IBM DB2 for z/OS - .6 terabyte 
     Operational Data Store: Microsoft SQL Server - .3 terabyte 
     Data Warehouse: Microsoft SQL Server - .6 terabyte 
 
Q.  Please detail the entity sets involved in Master Data Synchronization. Samples for different 
entities would help. 
A.  The data analysis to determine which portion of the JIS data repository is master data has 
not been completed.  Based on analysis to date, it is estimated that less than 25% of the JIS 
data will become master data.  The primary master data domain is Person.  Other domains 
include Court Case, Law Citation, and Court. 
 
Q.  Regarding the 7.5 million transactions per week, can you please elaborate more on the 
transaction split-up (in terms of major entities, type of operations etc..,)? 
A.  The transactions are primarily online searches and data modifications.  Batch transactions 
are typically multiple transactions with characteristics that are similar to online transactions.  
There are very few data loads. 
 
Q.  Relationships with unstructured data (e.g. images) – Need more details as to what is the 
expectation.  Could you give us some samples. 
A.  We have situations where we have data files (e.g. jpeg) in the windows file system that need 
to be associated with data (e.g. a particular court case) in the transactional database. 
 
Q.  Relationships between dissimilar objects (e.g. vehicle and jurisdiction) – Need more details 
as to what is the expectation. Could you give us some samples. 
A.  This refers to relationships between objects from different data domains.  In the example 
provided in the RFP question, the vehicle object may be in a Person domain and the jurisdiction 
in a Location domain. 
 
Q.  Please detail any existing data constraints to be satisfied by the system being proposed. 
A.  There is no list of existing data constraints.  This contract will not include the migration of 
data into the MDM for production use, so the AOC is interested primarily in the capabilities the 
proposed system has with regard to data validation. 
 
Q.  What are the different import and export data formats that are necessary to be supported 
by the proposed system. 
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A.  The National Information Exchange Model (NIEM) is our communication standard. 
 
Q.  Are there any mandatory Web services that you would need the system to expose? 
A.  There is no list of current Web service requirements, but we expect to expose quite a few 
Web services in the future. 
 
Q.  Please specify the BCP and the uptime SLA the system needs to provide for. 
A.  The AOC disaster recovery policy requires that the JIS system be operational within 48 hours 
of declaring a disaster.  Our uptime requirements are 24x7 outside of our scheduled downtime 
(1 hr per week). 
 
Q.  How many individuals do you foresee loading into MDM?  
A.  6.4 Million 
 

Q.  How many legal entities do you foresee loading into MDM?  
A.  50 Thousand 
 

Q.  What is the implementation start and end date?  
A.  The key dates for this RFP are in the RFP.  This is a product procurement.  This contract will 
not include deploying master data within the MDM solution in a production environment.  The 
product will be installed and tested only to ensure that the agreed product has been 
successfully delivered. 
 
Q.  What is the quality of data in their source systems? 
A.  Assessment of the quality of the data in the source systems has not been completed. 
 
Q. Does your version of Informatica have capability to convert DSEE jobs?   
A.  We are running Informatica version 8.1.1.  Please contact Informatica for product 
information. 
 
Q.  Are the courts requesting a quote and procurement cost proposals for the hardware to 
support this MDM solution, or simply recommendations? 
A.  AOC will determine hardware costs and factor those into the cost of the solution.  Feel free 
to provide hardware cost information (particularly if you believe that you can provide the 
hardware at a lower cost or within a shorter timeframe), but be sure to keep hardware costs 
separate from MDM product costs. 
 
Q.  Do you anticipate each system identified in the RFP will contribute to the master data as a 
data source?  
A.  We are looking for a product that we can use in that way, but this is a product procurement.  
This contract will not include deploying master data within the MDM solution in a production 
environment.  The product will be installed and tested only to ensure that the agreed product 
has been successfully delivered. 
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Q.  For each system acting as a data source to the master data, will the integration need to be 
in real time or in batch and against what Service Level Agreements (SLA)?  
A.  Again, we are looking for a product that we can use in that way, but this is a product 
procurement.  This contract will not include deploying master data within the MDM solution in 
a production environment.  The product will be installed and tested only to ensure that the 
agreed product has been successfully delivered (including real time and batch).  We have not 
yet determined specific SLAs, but to be considered real time it should be at least within our 
online response time SLA which is 3 seconds. 

Q.  Do you anticipate each system identified in the RFP will consume the master data?  
A.  We are looking for a product that we can use in that way, but this is a product procurement.  
This contract will not include deploying master data within the MDM solution in a production 
environment.  The product will be installed and tested only to ensure that the agreed product 
has been successfully delivered. 

Q.  For each system acting as a consumer of the master data, will the integration need to be in 
real time or in batch and against what SLAs?  
A.  We are looking for a product that we can use in that way, but this is a product procurement.  
This contract will not include deploying master data within the MDM solution in a production 
environment.  The product will be installed and tested only to ensure that the agreed product 
has been successfully delivered (including real time and batch).  We have not yet determined 
specific SLAs, but to be considered real time it should be at least within our online response 
time SLA which is 3 seconds. 

Q.  For each system acting as a consumer of the master data, will updates to the master data be 
pushed (published) to the consuming systems or will the master data be requested in calls to 
the MDM solution?  
A.  We are looking for a product that we can use in that way, but this is a product procurement.  
This contract will not include deploying master data within the MDM solution in a production 
environment.  The product will be installed and tested only to ensure that the agreed product 
has been successfully delivered. We have not yet determined specific SLAs, but to be 
considered real time it should be at least within our online response time SLA which is 3 
seconds (including push/pull and pub/sub). 

Q.  Do you have an existing ETL environment that can be leveraged as a part of the solution or 
would this need to be added/replaced if required?  
A.  We have Informatica. 

Q.  Do you have an existing service bus that can be leveraged as a part of the solution or would 
this need to be added/replaced if required?  
A.  We have BizTalk. 
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Q.  Do you have an existing web services environment that can be leveraged as a part of the 
solution or would this need to be added/replaced if required?  
A.  We are in the beginning stages of building our web service environment. 

Q.  What business processes will need to be directly supported by the MDM solution? E.g.   
A.  We have not completed that analysis, but preliminary findings indicate that the MDM 
solution will be a part of nearly all business functions (involving Person data, Court Case data, 
Citation data, Court Location data, including scheduling, journaling, and accounting associated 
with these major categories). 

Q.  Will those business processes be directly accessing the MDM data or will they be supported 
through the existing apps?  
A.  We are looking for a product that we can use in that way, but this is a product procurement.  
This contract will not include deploying master data within the MDM solution in a production 
environment.  The product will be installed and tested only to ensure that the agreed product 
has been successfully delivered (including both direct access and access via applications). 

Q.  Please provide some additional guidance regarding your existing data model. What are the 
data entities and subject areas do you plan to master?    
A.  We have not completed that analysis, but preliminary findings indicate that the MDM 
solution will be a part of nearly all business functions (involving Person data, Court Case data, 
Citation data, Court Location data, including scheduling, journaling, and accounting associated 
with these major categories). 

Q.  Is the existing data model harmonized across the legacy systems or is it a collection of 
independent models and entities?  
A.  There is one data model, but there are parallel structures where different court levels had 
different detailed requirements for the same general functionality. 

Q.  Do you require hierarchy management capabilities or simply entity level data mastering?  
Such as households, known relationships and association with known entities.  
A.  We are looking for a product that we can use in that way, but this is a product procurement.  
This contract will not include deploying master data within the MDM solution in a production 
environment.  The product will be installed and tested only to ensure that the agreed product 
has been successfully delivered. 

Q.  Do data exchange interfaces already exist between in scope systems through standards such 
as NIEM/GJXDM and N-DEx?    
A.  NIEM is our standard. 

Q.  Will the MDM solution need to expose the master data through these interface standards or 
will that intra-system and external system data sharing be done through the existing application 
interfaces?  
A.  We are looking for a product that we can use in that way, but this is a product procurement.  
This contract will not include deploying master data within the MDM solution in a production 
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environment.  The product will be installed and tested only to ensure that the agreed product 
has been successfully delivered.  Our intent is that the local applications and their databases 
will interact with the MDM solution the same way as the external systems. 

Q.  Do you envision maintaining the existing Mainframe DB2 database as the MDM repository 
(being maintained through the MDM solution) or do you envision the master data to be 
persisted outside of that existing database and the DB2 database subsequently synchronized 
with the MDM solution?  
A.  Our vision is to implement a separate master data repository where the existing DB2 
database is a source and a consumer like any other system that interacts with the MDM 
solution. 

Q.  What type of references would you prefer?  Technical or JIS?  
A.  We would prefer both, but for this engagement technical is more critical. 

Q.  Should the installation/implementation cost reflect the integration of the MDM solution 
with all the defined subscribing systems or will the legacy application teams be responsible for 
leveraging the data services provided by the MDM solution?  
A.  The cost should reflect the work needed to install the product.  As stated previously, 
implementation will be limited in scope and will not be production. 

Q.  What, if any, MDM governance constructs are currently in place to support this effort?  
A.  None.  Governance is informal, but we are in the process of establishing a governance 
structure that will properly manage the MDM solution. 

Q.  Have data stewards been named for each legacy application?  
A.  No.  Stewardship has been implicitly defined based on application evolution, but formal roles 
are being defined. 

Q.  Does the AOC have any existing data quality tools that can be leveraged for this effort?  
A.  No. 

Q.  Has any data profiling of the legacy application been performed to determine data quality?  
A.  No.  Informal analysis has been performed in key areas.  Formal processes are being defined. 

 


